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During the first quarter of 2022, significant progress was made to advance Rubellite’s strategic priorities for 2022 which include: 
 

1. Deliver Robust Organic Growth Profile to Unlock Free Funds Flow; 
2. Drive Top Quartile Capital Efficiencies; 
3. Materially Grow Reserves and Reserve-based Net Asset Value and De-risk Location Inventory; 
4. Accretively Grow Pure Play Clearwater Land Base and Prospect Inventory; 
5. Maintain Pristine Balance Sheet and Manage Risk; and  
6. Record Positive Performance Metrics to Validate ESG Excellence. 

 

FIRST QUARTER 2022 HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• Rubellite has steadily executed its business plan, running a two-rig drilling program since late November. As of March 31, 2022 there were 
twenty eight (26.0 net) wells contributing to sales production, with another four (3.5 net) wells rig released and recovering oil-based drilling 
mud (“OBM”), as compared to sixteen (15.0 net) wells on production at the end of the fourth quarter of 2021 with an additional five (5.0 
net) wells recovering OBM. Recoveries of OBM are not recorded as sales production as the OBM is recycled for future drilling operations to 
the extent possible or sold and credited back to drilling capital. 
 

• The Company averaged 1,525 bbl/d of sales production during the month of March and achieved its 2,000 bbl/d production milestone in 
late March. Production progressively ramped up through the first quarter of 2022 as new wells fully recovered base-oil load fluid, filled tank 
inventories and then commenced delivery to sales terminals. Daily average sales production increased 108% from fourth quarter 2021 
levels to average 1,251 bbl/d of conventional heavy oil in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 - 603 bbl/d), at the high end of first quarter 
guidance of 1,150 to 1,250 bbl/d (100% conventional heavy oil).  
 

• Capital expenditures(1) totaled $35.5 million in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 – $17.2 million). Exploration and development spending 
of $21.8 million was in-line with previous guidance of first quarter 2022 spending of between $20.0 and $22.0 million, and included $3.1 
million for equipment, tubulars and OBM inventory procurement for the remainder of the 2022 drilling program. Land purchases during the 
first quarter of 2022 were $13.7 million (Q4 2021 – $1.5 million) and comprised 65.1 net sections of highly prospective Clearwater 
undeveloped lands in strategic areas of the Clearwater play. 
 

• During the quarter, the Company signed a letter of intent to pursue a farm-in and option agreement (the “Peavine Transaction”) in the 
Peavine area, in the vicinity of recent industry Clearwater drilling activity and southwest of Rubellite’s existing option acreage at West 
Dawson in northern Alberta. The Peavine Transaction provides exposure to 61.25 gross (36.75 net) sections of land highly prospective for 
the Clearwater formation. Subsequent to the end of the quarter, the Company executed the definitive agreement with respect to the 
Peavine Transaction. 
 

• Drilling activity for the first quarter of 2022 totaled eleven (9.5 net) multi-lateral horizontal Clearwater wells, including six (6.0 net) wells 
rig released at Ukalta, two (2.0 net) wells rig released at Figure Lake and three (1.5 net) wells rig released at Marten Hills prior to the end 
of the first quarter. The two-rig winter drilling program extended into the early part of the second quarter as one (1.0 net) multi-lateral 
horizontal well at Ukalta was spud on March 24, 2022 and rig released April 5, 2022, followed by the drilling of a vertical water disposal 
well at Ukalta, and one (0.5 net) multi-lateral horizontal well at Marten Hills was spud on March 20, 2022 and rig released April 8, 2022. 
 

• Operating netbacks(1) in first quarter of 2022 were $8.0 million, or $71.02/bbl (Q4 2021 – $1.5 million or $45.48/boe), reflecting strong 
Western Canadian Select (“WCS”) benchmark prices and increased production. After realized losses on risk management contracts of $3.3 
million or $29.02/boe (Q4 2021 – gain of $0.1 million or $1.83/boe), operating netbacks were $4.7 million or $42.00/boe (Q4 2021 – $2.6 
million or $47.31/boe). 
 

• Adjusted funds flow(1) was $3.8 million in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 – $1.5 million), up 153% quarter-over-quarter, driven by the 
growth in sales production. Cash flow from operating activities was $3.2 million (Q4 2021 - $1.1 million). 
 

• Net loss was $9.3 million in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 – $1.3 million) as a result of an unrealized loss on risk management 
commodity contracts of $10.6 million.  
 

• On March 30, 2022, Rubellite completed its previously announced bought deal and non-brokered private placement financings, raising 
gross proceeds of $38.7 million through the issuance of approximately 10.9 million shares priced at $3.55 per share.  
 

• Adjusted positive working capital(1) at the end of the first quarter of 2022 was $10.9 million, an increase from the end of the fourth quarter 
of 2021 of $5.4 million as a result of the equity financings and adjusted funds flow,  offset by capital spending on drilling activity and land 
purchases. The borrowing limit on the Company’s reserves-based revolving credit facility was increased to $25.0 million during the quarter 
and the initial term was extended by 12 months to May 31, 2023. 

 
(1) Non-GAAP measure, Non-GAAP ratio or supplementary financial measure that does not have any standardized meaning under IFRS and therefore may not be 

comparable to similar measures presented by other entities. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this news 

release. 
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OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
At Ukalta, six (6.0 net) wells were rig released in the first quarter and drilling operations continued through the first two weeks of April as the 
final Clearwater multi-lateral horizontal well on the 13-35 pad was rig released and a vertical water disposal well was drilled to reduce future 
water handling costs and enhance field netbacks. Drilling in the Ukalta area is now shut down for spring break-up. During the first quarter, three 
previously drilled Ukalta development wells completed their OBM recovery in mid-to-late February and recorded an average IP30 rate of 137 
bbl/d which is on the Ukalta area type curve(1) of approximately 135 bbl/d. The first three wells of the first quarter 2022 drilling program (the 
“9-9 pad”) completed their OBM recovery phase and IP30 period during the quarter. These wells have been experiencing higher water cuts than 
directly offsetting wells, are still cleaning up and are producing below the Ukalta area type curve. The last pad of the first quarter 2022 drilling 
program (the “13-35” pad) had two (2.0 net) wells that rig released in March and one (1.0 net) that was rig released in April. Two of the wells 
have fully recovered their respective OBM and are in their initial 30-day production periods. The final well has been experiencing higher gas 
rates during start-up operations which has delayed full recovery of OBM. Production is beginning to stabilize on this pad. Since its inception, 
Rubellite has drilled 9 wells in the primary Clearwater development zone at Ukalta that have completed their initial 30-day production periods, 
with an average IP30 rate of 113 bbl/d. Excluding the three high water cut wells on the 9-9 pad, the average IP30 rate is 145 bbl/d. When field 
conditions allow, drilling operations at Ukalta will re-commence at a new six-well pad, targeting to extend the primary Clearwater zone 
development to the north end of Rubellite’s Ukalta area land base. 
 
At Marten Hills, the final eight-leg multi-lateral well of the four (2.0 net) well winter drilling program was rig released in early April. All four wells 
are located on the same new surface pad and have all recovered their respective OBM and are now producing volumes to sales. Two of the four 
wells have reached the end of their initial 30-day production periods, recording average IP30 rates of 182 bbl/d as compared to the Marten Hills 
type curve(1) IP30 of approximately 120 bbl/d. The remaining two wells of the Marten Hills winter drilling program are also performing slightly 
stronger than the Marten Hills type curve IP30 and are expected to reach the end of their initial 30-day production periods during May. 
 
At Figure Lake, during the first quarter, the Company drilled and rig released the last two wells of the four well winter drilling program, which 
followed up last summer’s exploration success at the South Figure Lake pad. The first two south pad development wells in the winter program 
completed their OBM recovery in late January while the last two wells on the same pad completed their OBM recovery in February. On average, 
the 4 south pad follow up wells recorded average IP30 rates of 133 bbl/d which compares favorably with the Figure Lake type curve(1) of 
approximately 115 bbl/d. Drilling operations are expected to recommence at Figure Lake later in the second quarter as surface access conditions 
permit, with a vertical water disposal well and 12 new horizontal multi-lateral wells planned for the remainder of 2022. In addition to enhancing 
field netbacks during the second half of 2022, the new on-site water disposal well at Figure Lake is also designed to provide additional reservoir 
quality information on the prospective Clearwater zone.  
 
Drilling costs escalated 5 to 10% during the quarter due to increased OBM costs which are directly related to the price of base oil. In addition, 
the flow through of higher fuel surcharges and personnel costs and supply chain issues has further impacted the cost of tubulars and other 
goods and services. The Company has been successful mitigating the impact of inflationary pressures by improving average drilling performance 

and employing bulk-purchasing and other capital efficiency strategies. 
 
(1) Type curve assumptions are based on the Total Proved plus Probable Undeveloped reserves contained in the McDaniel Reserve Report as disclosed in the 

Company’s Annual Information Form which is available under the Company’s profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. “McDaniel” means McDaniel & Associates 

Consultants Ltd. independent qualified reserves evaluators. “McDaniel Reserve Report” means the independent engineering evaluation of the crude oil, natural 
gas and NGL reserves, prepared by McDaniel with an effective date of December 31 2021 and a preparation date of March 9 2022. 

 

LAND ACQUISITION UPDATE 
 
Subsequent to the end of the first quarter, Rubellite executed a definitive agreement for the previously announced Peavine Transaction located 
in the vicinity of recent industry Clearwater drilling activity and southwest of Rubellite’s existing option acreage at West Dawson in northern 
Alberta. The Peavine Transaction provides exposure to 61.25 gross (36.75 net) sections of land highly prospective for the Clearwater formation. 
Rubellite plans to access the Peavine lands late in 2022 when frozen ground conditions permit to drill a minimum of two exploratory wells prior 
to April 1, 2023, targeting to establish production and evaluate the future development potential of these Clearwater lands. 
 
Since the end of the first quarter, Rubellite has spent an additional $2.9 million to acquire 52.7 net sections of land through Crown land purchase 
and other transactions. Including lands acquired in the second quarter of 2022, the Company has grown its land position for exposure to the 
Clearwater play to over 270 net sections, up 160% from the 104 net sections held by Rubellite at its inception in July of 2021. A significant 
portion of the newly acquired lands are complementary to existing operating areas in Ukalta and Figure Lake on the southern Clearwater trend, 

while the remainder of the additional new acreage supplements Rubellite’s exploratory acreage in the Northern Clearwater play fairway. 
 

2022 OUTLOOK AND GUIDANCE 
 
Rubellite forecasts capital spending(5) of $26.0 to $28.0 million for the remainder of 2022 to drill, complete equip and tie-in up to 22 (20.1 net) 
multi-lateral horizontal wells in its three core operating areas at Ukalta, Figure Lake and Marten Hills, as well as two (2.0 net) vertical water 
disposal wells to mitigate water handling costs. The Company is finalizing its licensing, access and logistical plans to drill four to six (3.0 – 4.0 
net) exploratory wells on its northern exploration blocks, including lands at West Dawson and Peavine, to complete earning requirements and 
delineate area type curves prior to April 1, 2023. In addition, Rubellite plans to continue to pursue additional investments to further grow its 
land base and its inventory of prospective Clearwater drilling locations. 
 
Forecast drilling activities are expected to be fully funded from adjusted funds flow(5) and the Company’s credit facility. The Figure Lake drilling 
program will be partially funded by the Figure Lake GORR, which contributed approximately $0.4 million during the first quarter of 2022 and is 
forecast to contribute $2.0 million in 2022.  
 
  

http://www.sedar.com/
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The table below summarizes Rubellite’s exploration and development capital spending(5) and anticipated core area drilling activities for 2022, 
excluding activity on its northern Clearwater trend exploratory land blocks and undeveloped land purchases and acquisitions. 
 
2022 Exploration and Development Forecast Capital Expenditures(1)(5) 
 

 Q1 2022(4) 
($ millions) 

# of wells 
(gross/net) 

Q2 – Q4 2022 
($ millions) 

# of wells 
(gross/net) 

2022 
($ millions) 

# of wells 
(gross/net) 

Ukalta(2)  6 / 6.0  7 / 7.0  13 / 13.0 
Figure Lake(2)(3)  2 / 2.0  12 / 12.0  14 / 14.0 
Marten Hills(2)  3 / 1.5  3 / 1.1  6 / 2.6 

Total(4) $21.8 11 / 9.5 $26 - $28 22 / 20.1 $48 - $50 33 / 29.6 
(1) Excludes activity on exploratory option blocks, undeveloped land purchases and acquisitions, if any. 
(2) Well count reflects wells rig released during the period. One (1.0 net) well at Ukalta and one (0.5 net) well at Marten Hills were spud late in Q1 2022 and rig 

released in early April. Full year 2022 well counts exclude two (2.0 net) vertical water disposal wells in Q2 and Q3 2022 at Ukalta and Figure Lake respectively. 
(3) Capital expenditures at Figure Lake are reduced for the Figure Lake GORR  which contributed $0.4 million in Q1 2022 and is forecast to contribute $2.0 million 

in 2022. 
(4) Q1 2022 capital expenditures included $3.1 million for equipment, tubulars and OBM inventory procurement for the remainder of 2022 drilling program. 

Forecast 2022 exploration and development capital expenditures include spending for two vertical water disposal wells. 
(5) Non-GAAP measure, Non-GAAP ratio or supplementary financial measure that does not have any standardized meaning under IFRS and therefore may not be 

comparable to similar measures presented by other entities. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this news 
release. 

 
The drilling program planned after spring break-up at Ukalta, Figure Lake and Marten Hills is expected to continue to drive progressive growth 
over the remainder of 2022. With spring breakup conditions and new wells being optimized during their initial production phases, sales production 
volumes will fluctuate during the second quarter. Second quarter production volumes are expected to average between 1,525 and 1,625 bbl/d 
and will continue to ramp up through the balance of the year. The Company’s full year 2022 average sales production levels of between 2,200 
and 2,400 bbl/d is unchanged from previous guidance. 
 
2022 Guidance assumptions are unchanged from those released March 9, 2022 and exclude undeveloped land purchases and additional 
acquisitions as well as activity on exploration blocks in the Northern Clearwater trend which are dependent on timing of surface access. 
 
 

 
Susan Riddell Rose 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
May 16, 2022 
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Financial and Operating Highlights  
 

 
($ thousands, except as noted) 

 

Three months ended  
March 31, 2022 

 

Three months ended  
December 31, 2021 

Financial   
Oil revenue 10,876 3,931 
Net loss (9,272) (1,265) 
 Per share – basic(1)(2)  (0.21)  (0.03) 
 Per share – diluted(1)(2) (0.21)  (0.03) 
Cash flow from operating activities 3,192 1,115 
Adjusted funds flow(1) 3,835 1,469 
 Per share – basic(1)(2)  0.09  0.03 
 Per share – diluted(1)(2)  0.09  0.03 
Net debt (10,858) (5,375) 

Capital expenditures(1) 35,581 17,180 
 Exploration and development 21,774 15,660 
 Land and acquisitions 13,737 1,520 

Wells Drilled(3) – gross (net)  11 / 9.5  8 / 8.0 

Common shares outstanding(4) (thousands)   
    Weighted average – basic 43,930 41,834 
    Weighted average – diluted 43,930 42,360 
    End of period 54,723 43,809 

Operating   
    Daily average oil sales production(5) (bbl/d) 1,251 603 

Average prices   
   West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) ($US/bbl)  94.29  77.13 
   Western Canadian Select (“WCS”) ($CAD/bbl)  101.01  78.65 
 Average Realized oil price(2) ($/bbl)  96.61  70.94 
 Average Realized oil price(2) – after risk management contracts ($/bbl)   67.57  72.77 

(1) Non-GAAP measure. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this news release and in the MD&A for an 
explanation of composition.  

(2) Non-GAAP ratio. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this news release and in the MD&A for an explanation 

of composition.  
(3) Well count reflects wells rig released during the period.  
(4) Per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of basic or diluted common shares outstanding.  
(5) Conventional heavy crude oil sales production excludes tank inventory volumes.  
 

 

ADVISORIES 
 
This letter to shareholders and first quarter 2022 interim report refer to certain non-GAAP measures and metrics commonly used in the oil and 
natural gas industry and provides forward-looking information and statements. Further detailed information regarding these measures is 
provided in this report in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis – NON-GAAP MEASURES” on pages 13 to 15 and “Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND STATEMENTS” on page 15. 
 
In addition to the disclosure set out in the Company’s Management's Discussion and Analysis for the period ended March 31, 2022, we provide 
certain supplementary disclosure throughout this report in respect of certain specified financial measures (as such term is defined in National 
Instrument 51-112 – Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures) and in respect of certain oil and gas metrics. 
  



 

RUBELLITE ENERGY INC. Q1 2022 Page 5 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The following is management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of Rubellite Energy Inc.’s (“Rubellite”, the “Company” or the “Corporation”) 
operating and financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2022, as well as information and estimates concerning the Corporation’s 
future outlook based on currently available information. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited 
condensed interim financial statements and accompanying notes for the three months ended March 31, 2022 as well as the audited financial 
statements and accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 2021. Disclosure which is unchanged from the December 31, 2021 MD&A 
has not been duplicated herein. The Corporation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles ("GAAP") which require publicly accountable enterprises to prepare their financial statements using International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”). Readers are referred to the advisories for additional information regarding forecasts, assumptions and other forward-looking 
information contained in the “Forward-Looking Information” section of this MD&A.  
 
The date of this MD&A is May 11, 2022. All amounts are in Canadian dollars unless specified otherwise. Rubellite commenced operations with 
the acquisition of Perpetual Energy Inc.’s (“Perpetual) Clearwater lands, wells, roads and related facilities in northeast Alberta (the “Clearwater 
Assets”) on July 15, 2021. Operating results for 2021 reflect the period from September 3, 2021, the effective date of the completion of the 
plan of arrangement between Perpetual, shareholders of Perpetual and Rubellite (the “Arrangement”), to December 31, 2021. As result, there 
are no Q1 2021 comparatives and the Company has provided comparison to the most recent prior quarter of Q4 2021.  
 
This MD&A contains certain specified financial measures that are not recognized by GAAP and used by management to evaluate the performance 
of the Corporation and its business. Since certain specified financial measures may not have a standardized meaning, securities regulations 
require that specified financial measures are clearly defined, qualified and, where required, reconciled with their nearest GAAP measure. See 
"Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" for further information on the definition, calculation and reconciliation of these measures. This MD&A 
also contains forward-looking information. See "Forward-Looking Information".  

 
NATURE OF BUSINESS: Rubellite is a Canadian energy company headquartered in Calgary, Alberta and engaged in the exploration, 
development and production of conventional heavy crude oil from the Clearwater formation in Eastern Alberta, utilizing multi-lateral horizontal 
drilling technology. Rubellite has a pure play Clearwater asset base and is pursuing a robust organic growth plan focused on superior corporate 
returns and funds flow generation while maintaining a conservative capital structure and prioritizing environmental, social and governance 
(“ESG”) excellence. Additional information on Rubellite can be accessed at www.sedar.com and found at www.rubelliteenergy.com.  
 
Rubellite's common shares are publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol "RBY". 
 

FIRST QUARTER 2022 OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• Capital expenditures (see “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures”) totaled $35.5 million in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 – $17.2 
million). Exploration and development spending of $21.8 million was in-line with previous guidance of first quarter 2022 spending of 
between $20.0 and $22.0 million. Land purchases during the first quarter of 2022 were $13.7 million (Q4 2021 - $1.5 million), adding 65.1 
net sections of highly prospective Clearwater undeveloped lands in strategic areas of the Clearwater play.  
 

• During the quarter, the Company signed a letter of intent to pursue a farm-in and option agreement (the “Peavine Transaction”) in the 
Peavine area, in the vicinity of recent industry Clearwater drilling activity and southwest of Rubellite’s existing option acreage at West 
Dawson in northern Alberta. The Peavine Transaction provides exposure to 61.25 gross (34.75 net) sections of land highly prospective for 
the Clearwater formation. Subsequent to the end of the quarter, the Company executed the definitive agreement with respect to the 
Peavine Transaction. 
 

• Drilling activity for the first quarter of 2022 totaled eleven (9.5 net) multi-lateral horizontal Clearwater wells, including six (6.0 net) wells 
rig released at Ukalta, two (2.0 net) wells rig released at Figure Lake and three (1.5 net) rig released at Marten Hills prior to the end of 
the first quarter. At the end of first quarter, one (1.0) well at Ukalta was spud on March 24, 2022 and rig released April 5, 2022 and one 
(0.5 net) well at Marten Hills was spud on March 20, 2022 and rig released April 8, 2022.   
 

• As of March 31, 2022 there were twenty eight (26.0 net) wells contributing to sales production, with another four (3.5 net) wells rig 
released and recovering oil-based drilling mud (“OBM”), as compared to sixteen (15.0 net) wells on production at the end of the fourth 
quarter of 2021 with an additional five (5.0 net) wells recovering OBM. Recoveries of OBM are not recorded as sales production as the 
OBM is recycled for future drilling operations to the extent possible or sold and credited back to drilling capital. 
 

• The Company averaged 1,525 bbl/d of sales production during the month of March and achieved its 2,000 bbl/d production milestone in 
late March. Production progressively ramped up through the first quarter of 2022 as new wells fully recovered OBM, filled tank inventories 
and then commenced delivery to sales terminals. Daily average sales production increased 108% from fourth quarter 2021 levels to average 
1,251 bbl/d of conventional heavy oil in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 - 603 bbl/d), at the high end of first quarter guidance of 1,150 
to 1,250 bbl/d (100% conventional heavy oil).  
 

• Operating netbacks (see “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures”) in first quarter of 2022 were $8.0 million, or $71.02/bbl (Q4 2021 – 
$2.5 million or $45.48/boe), reflecting strong Western Canadian Select (“WCS”) benchmark prices and increased production. After realized 
losses on risk management contracts of $3.3 million or $29.02/boe (Q4 2021 – gain of $0.1 million or $1.83/boe), operating netbacks were 
$4.7 million or $42.00/boe (Q4 2021 - $2.6 million or $47.31/boe).   
 

• Adjusted funds flow (see “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures”)  in the first quarter of 2022 was $3.8 million (Q4 2021 – $1.5 million) 
up 153% quarter-over-quarter, driven by the growth in sales production. Cash flow from operating activities in the first quarter of 2022 
were $3.2 million (Q4 2021 – $1.1 million). 
 

http://www.sedar.com/
http://www.rubelliteenergy.com/
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• Net loss for the first quarter of 2022 was $9.3 million (Q4 2021 – $1.3 million) driven by an unrealized loss on risk management commodity 
contracts of $10.6 million.  
 

• On March 30, 2022 Rubellite completed bought deal and non-brokered private placement financings, raising gross proceeds of $38.7 million 
through the issuance of approximately 10.9 million shares priced at $3.55 per share.  
 

• Adjusted working capital surplus (see “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures”) at the end of the first quarter of 2022 was $10.9 million, 
an increase from the end of the fourth quarter of 2021 of $5.4 million as a result of the equity financings and adjusted funds flow, offset 
by capital spending on drilling activity and land purchases. The borrowing limit on the Company’s reserves-based revolving credit facility 
was increased to $25.0 million during the quarter and the initial term was extended by 12 months to May 31, 2023. 

 
($ thousands, except as noted) Q1 2022  Q4 2021 Q3 2021(1) 

Financial     
Oil revenue 10,876  3,931 992 
Net income (loss) (9,272)  (1,265) 8,967 
 Per share – basic(4)  (0.21)                     (0.03)  12.34 
 Per share – diluted(4)  (0.21)                     (0.03)  5.16 
Total assets 164,009            115,862           132,370 
Cash flow from operating activities 3,192  1,115 – 
Adjusted funds flow – pre-transaction costs(2) 3,835  2,158 760 
Adjusted funds flow(2) 3,835  1,469 378 
 Per share – basic(3)(4)  0.09   0.03  0.70 
 Per share – diluted(3)(4)  0.09   0.03  0.29 

Common shares (thousands)     
Weighted average – basic 43,930  41,834 726 
Weighted average – diluted 43,930  42,360 1,739 

Operating     
Daily average oil sales production (bbl/d) (5) 1,251  603 561 

Rubellite average realized oil price(3)       
 Average realized oil price ($/bbl) (3)  96.61                         70.94                           65.50 

Average realized oil price – after risk management contracts ($/bbl) (3) 67.57                         72.77                           65.50 
(1) Reflects activity from incorporation on July 12, 2021 and operating results from September 3, 2021 the effective date of the Arrangement to September 30, 

2021. 
(2) Non-GAAP measure. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition.  
(3) Non-GAAP ratio. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition.  
(4) Per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of basic or diluted common shares.  
(5) Conventional heavy oil sales production excludes tank inventory volumes. 

 

OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
At Ukalta, six (6.0 net) wells were rig released in the first quarter and drilling operations continued through the first two weeks of April as the 
final Clearwater multi-lateral horizontal well on the 13-35 pad was rig released and a vertical water disposal well was drilled to reduce future 
water handling costs and enhance field netbacks. Drilling in the Ukalta area is now shut down for spring break-up. During the first quarter, three 
previously drilled Ukalta development wells completed their OBM recovery in mid-to-late February and recorded an average IP30 rate of 137 
bbl/d which is on the Ukalta area type curve(1) of approximately 135 bbl/d. The first three wells of the first quarter 2022 drilling program (the 
“9-9 pad”) completed their OBM recovery phase and IP30 period during the quarter. These wells have been experiencing higher water cuts than 
directly offsetting wells, are still cleaning up and are producing below the Ukalta area type curve. The last pad of the first quarter 2022 drilling 
program (the “13-35” pad) had two (2.0 net) wells that rig released in March and one (1.0 net) that was rig released in April. Two of the wells 
have fully recovered their respective OBM and are in their initial 30-day production periods. The final well has been experiencing higher gas 
rates during start-up operations which has delayed full recovery of OBM. Production is beginning to stabilize on this pad. Since its inception, 
Rubellite has drilled nine wells in the primary Clearwater development zone at Ukalta that have completed their initial 30-day production periods, 
with an average IP30 rate of 113 bbl/d. Excluding the three high water cut wells on the 9-9 pad, the average IP30 rate is 145 bbl/d. When field 
conditions allow, drilling operations at Ukalta will re-commence at a new six-well pad, targeting to extend the primary Clearwater zone 
development to the north end of Rubellite’s Ukalta area land base. 
 
At Marten Hills, the final eight-leg multi-lateral well of the four (2.0 net) well winter drilling program was rig released in early April. All four wells 
are located on the same new surface pad and have all recovered their respective OBM and are now producing volumes to sales. Two of the four 
wells have reached the end of their initial 30-day production periods, recording average IP30 rates of 182 bbl/d as compared to the Marten Hills 
type curve(1) IP30 of 120 bbl/d. The remaining two wells of the Marten Hills winter drilling program are also performing slightly stronger than 
the Marten Hills type curve IP30 and are expected to reach the end of their initial 30-day production periods during May. 
 
At Figure Lake, during the first quarter, the Company drilled and rig released the last two wells of the four well winter drilling program, which 
followed up last summer’s exploration success at the South Figure Lake pad. The first two south pad development wells in the winter program 
completed their OBM recovery in late January while the last two wells on the same pad completed their OBM recovery in February. On average, 
the four south pad follow up wells recorded average IP30 rates of 133 bbl/d which compares favorably with the Figure Lake type curve(1) of 
approximately 115 bbl/d. Drilling operations are expected to recommence at Figure Lake later in the second quarter as surface access conditions 
permit, with a vertical water disposal well and twelve new horizontal multi-lateral wells planned for the remainder of 2022. In addition to 
enhancing field netbacks during the second half of 2022, the new on-site water disposal well at Figure Lake is also designed to provide additional 
reservoir quality information on the prospective Clearwater zone.  
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Drilling costs escalated 5 to 10% during the quarter due to increased OBM costs which are directly related to the price of base oil. In addition, 
the flow through of higher fuel surcharges and personnel costs and supply chain issues has further impacted the cost of tubulars and other 
goods and services. The Company has been successful mitigating the impact of inflationary pressures by improving average drilling performance 
and employing bulk-purchasing and other capital efficiency strategies. 
 
(1) Type curve assumptions are based on the Total Proved Plus Probable Undeveloped reserves contained in the McDaniel Reserve Report as disclosed in the 

Company’s Annual Information Form which is available under the Company’s profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.  “McDaniel” means McDaniel & Associates 

Consultants Ltd. independent qualified reserves evaluators. “McDaniel Reserve Report” means the independent engineering evaluation of the crude oil, natural 
gas and NGL reserves, prepared by McDaniel with an effective date of December 31, 2021, and a preparation date of March 9 2022. 

 

LAND ACQUISITION UPDATE 
 
Subsequent to the end of the first quarter, Rubellite executed a definitive agreement for the previously announced Peavine Transaction located 
in the vicinity of recent industry Clearwater drilling activity and southwest of Rubellite’s existing option acreage at West Dawson in northern 
Alberta. The Peavine Transaction provides exposure to 61.25 gross (36.75 net) sections of land highly prospective for the Clearwater formation. 
Rubellite plans to access the Peavine lands late in 2022 when frozen ground conditions permit to drill a minimum of two exploratory wells prior 
to April 1, 2023, targeting to establish production and evaluate the future development potential of these Clearwater lands. 
 
Since the end of the first quarter, Rubellite has spent an additional $2.9 million to acquire 52.7 net sections of land through Crown land purchase 
and other transactions. Including lands acquired in the second quarter of 2022, the Company has grown its land position for exposure to the 
Clearwater play to over 270 net sections, up 160% from the 104 net sections held by Rubellite at its inception in July of 2021. A significant 
portion of the newly acquired lands are complementary to existing operating areas in Ukalta and Figure Lake on the southern Clearwater trend, 
while the remainder of the additional new acreage supplements Rubellite’s exploratory acreage in the Northern Clearwater play fairway. 
 

2022 OUTLOOK AND GUIDANCE 
 
Rubellite forecasts capital expenditures (see “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures”) of $26.0 to $28.0 million for the remainder of 2022 to 
drill, complete, equip and tie-in up to 22 (20.1 net) multi-lateral horizontal wells in its three core operating areas at Ukalta, Figure Lake and 
Marten Hills, as well as two (2.0 net) vertical water disposal wells to mitigate water handling costs. The Company is finalizing its licensing, 
access and logistical plans to drill four to six (3.0 – 4.0 net) exploratory wells on its Northern Exploration blocks, including lands at West Dawson 
and Peavine, to complete earning requirements and delineate area type curves prior to April 1, 2023. In addition, Rubellite plans to continue to 
pursue additional investments to further grow its land base and its inventory of prospective Clearwater drilling locations. 
 
Forecast drilling activities are expected to be fully funded from adjusted funds flow (see “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures”) and the 
Company’s credit facility. The Figure Lake drilling program will be partially funded by the Figure Lake GORR, which contributed approximately 
$0.4 million during Q1 2022 and is forecast to contribute $2.0 million in 2022.  
 
The table below summarizes Rubellite’s exploration and development capital expenditures and anticipated drilling activities for 2022, excluding 
activity on its northern Clearwater trend exploratory land blocks and undeveloped land purchases and acquisitions. 

 
2022 Exploration and Development Forecast Capital Expenditures(1)(5) 
 

 Q1 2022(4) 
($ millions) 

# of wells 
(gross/net) 

Q2 – Q4 2022 
($ millions) 

# of wells 
(gross/net) 

2022 
($ millions) 

# of wells 
(gross/net) 

Ukalta(2)  6 / 6.0  7 / 7.0  13 / 13.0 
Figure Lake(2)(3)  2 / 2.0  12 / 12.0  14 / 14.0 
Marten Hills(2)  3 / 1.5  3 / 1.1  6 / 2.6 

Total(4) $21.8 11 / 9.5 $26 - $28 22 / 20.1 $48 - $50 33 / 29.6 
(1) Excludes activity on exploratory option blocks, undeveloped land purchases and acquisitions, if any. 
(2) Well count reflects wells rig released during the period. One (1.0 net) well at Ukalta and one (0.5 net) well at Marten Hills were spud late in Q1 2022 and rig 

released in early April. Full year 2022 well counts exclude two (2.0 net) vertical water disposal wells in Q2 and Q3 2022 at Ukalta and Figure Lake respectively. 
(3) Capital expenditures at Figure Lake are reduced for the Figure Lake GORR which contributed $0.4 million in Q1 2022 and is forecast to contribute $2.0 million 

in 2022. 
(4) Q1 2022 capital expenditures included $3.1 million for equipment, tubulars and OBM inventory procurement for the remainder of 2022 drilling program. 

Forecast 2022 exploration and development capital expenditures include spending for two vertical water disposal wells. 
(5) Non-GAAP measure. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition.  

 

The drilling program planned after spring break-up at Ukalta, Figure Lake and Marten Hills is expected to continue to drive progressive growth 
over the remainder of 2022. With spring breakup conditions and new wells being optimized during their initial production phases, sales production 
volumes will fluctuate during the second quarter. Second quarter sales volumes are expected to average between 1,525 and 1,625 bbl/d and 
will continue to ramp up through the balance of the year. The Company’s full year 2022 forecast average sales production levels of between 
2,200 and 2,400 bbl/d is unchanged from previous guidance. 
 
2022 Guidance assumptions are unchanged from those released March 9, 2022 and exclude undeveloped land purchases and additional 
acquisitions as well as activity on exploration blocks in the Northern Clearwater trend which are dependent on timing of surface access. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

http://www.sedar.com/
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FIRST QUARTER 2022 FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS 
 
Cash Flow used in Investing Activities, Capital Expenditures, Acquisitions and Dispositions   
 
Cash flow used in investing activities was $28.5 million as compared to $71.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2021. In addition to cash flow used 
in investing activities, Rubellite uses capital expenditures to measure its capital investments compared to the Company’s annual budgeted 
expenditures. The capital budget excludes acquisition and disposition activities as well as the accounting impact of any accrual changes. “Capital 
expenditures” is not a standardized measure and, therefore, may not be comparable with the calculation of similar measures by other entities.  
For reconciliation of cash flow used in investing activities to capital expenditures, refer to the section entitled “Non-GAAP and Other Financial 
Measures” contained within this MD&A. 
 
The following table summarizes capital spending for both property, plant and equipment assets and exploration and evaluation assets, excluding 
non-cash items:  

  
($ thousands)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Exploration and development   21,774 15,660 
Land and acquisitions   13,737 1,520 

Capital expenditures (1)   35,511 17,180 
(1) Non-GAAP measure. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition.  

 
Wells drilled by area 

(gross/net)   
 

Q1 2022 
 

Q4 2021 

Ukalta(1)   6/6.0        6/6.0 
Figure Lake   2/2.0 2/2.0 
Marten Hills(2)     3/1.5 –/– 

Total   11/9.5 8/8.0 
(1) One (1.0 net) additional Ukalta well was spud on March 24, 2022 and rig released April 5, 2022 and not included in the Q1 2022 well count. 
(2) One (0.5 net) additional Marten Hills well was spud on March 20, 2022 and rig released April 8, 2022 and not included in the Q1 2022 well count.  

 
Rubellite’s exploration and development spending in the first quarter of 2022 was $21.8 million. The spending represented six (6.0 net) wells 
drilled at Ukalta, two (2.0 net) wells drilled at Figure Lake and three (1.5 net) wells drilled at Marten Hills. A seventh well at Ukalta and fourth 
well at Marten Hills were largely spent during the first quarter and were rig released in the beginning of the second quarter of 2022. An additional 
twelve (11.0 net) wells were contributing to sales production at the end of first quarter of 2022 as compared to the end of 2021 with few wells 
still recovering OBM. Land spending in the first quarter of 2022 was $13.7 million to purchase an additional 65.1 net sections of land in the 
Clearwater area.  
 
Drilling activity for the fourth quarter of 2021 totaled eight (8.0 net) horizontal, multi-lateral Clearwater wells, including six (6.0 net) wells rig 
released at Ukalta and two (2.0 net) wells rig released at Figure Lake prior to year-end 2021. Sixteen (15.0 net) wells were contributing to sales 
production at year-end 2021, while an additional five (5.0 net) wells were rig released and recovering oil-based drilling mud (“OBM”) used 
during the drilling process. 
 
2021 significant acquisitions 
 
On September 3, 2021, the Clearwater Assets were acquired from Perpetual for aggregate consideration of $65.5 million. The consideration 
consisted of promissory notes totaling $59.4 million, which were paid in cash on October 5, 2021, the issuance of 680,485 Rubellite common 
shares valued at $1.4 million, the return of 8.2 million Perpetual common shares exchanged in the Arrangement valued at $2.8 million and 
issuance of warrants to purchase 4.0 million Rubellite common shares at a price of $3.00 per share for a period of five years, valued at $2.0 
million. 
 

Production 

  Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Production     
 Average daily heavy crude oil (bbl/d) – production(1)   1,223 710 

 Average daily heavy crude oil (bbl/d) – sales(1)          1,251  603 

Total production (bbl/d)   1,251  603 
(1) The Company’s heavy oil sales volumes and production volumes differ due to changes in inventory. 

 
First quarter sales production averaged 1,251 bbl/d, up 648 bbl/d from 603 bbl/d in the fourth quarter.  
 

As of March 31, 2022, there were twenty eight (26.0 net) wells contributing to sales production, as compared to sixteen (15.0 net) wells on 
production at the end of the fourth quarter of 2021, while an additional five (5.0 net) wells were rig released and recovering OBM. The Company 
achieved its 2,000 bbl/d production milestone in late March. Production progressively ramped up through the first quarter of 2022 as new wells 
fully recovered base-oil load fluid, filled tank inventories and then commenced delivery to sales terminals. Second quarter production volumes 
are expected to average between 1,525 and 1,625 bbl/d and will continue to ramp up through the balance of the year. The Company’s full year 
2022 average forecast sales production guidance of between 2,200 and 2,400 bbl/d is unchanged from previous guidance. 
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Oil Revenue  

($ thousands, except as noted)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Oil revenue     
   Oil revenue   10,876 3,931 

     

Reference prices     
 West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) (US$/bbl)   94.29 77.13 
 Exchange rate (US$/bbl)   1.27 1.26 
 West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) (CAD$/bbl)   119.39 97.18 
 Western Canadian Select (“WCS”) differential (US$/bbl)     (14.53) (14.63) 
 WCS (CAD$/bbl)   101.01 78.65 

Rubellite average realized prices (1)     
    Average realized oil price ($/bbl)          96.61 70.94 

(1) Non-GAAP ratio. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition. 

 
Rubellite’s oil revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2022 of $10.9 million increased from $3.9 million during the fourth quarter of 
2021, due to the increase in production. Additionally, commodity prices increased during the first quarter of 2022 when compared to the fourth 
quarter of 2021 driven by higher WTI reference prices. The increase in the WCS average price was due to the increase in WTI oil prices to 
US$94.29/bbl (Q4 2021 – US$77.13/bbl). 
 
Risk Management Contracts 
 
The Company’s realized price deviates from the index due to the Company’s market diversification strategies that balances pricing exposure. 
The Company uses “average realized prices after risk management contracts” which is not a standardized measure, and therefore may not be 
comparable with the calculation of similar measures by other entities. The measure is used by management to calculate the Company’s net 
realized commodity prices, taking into account the monthly settlements of financial crude oil forward sales, collars and basis differentials. These 
contracts are put in place to protect Rubellite’s cash flows from potential volatility. 
 

($ thousands, except as noted)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Unrealized loss on risk management contracts   (10,580) (1,337) 
Realized gain (loss) on risk management contracts    (3,269) 101 

 
Realized gain (loss) on risk management contracts ($/bbl)   (29.04) 1.83 

Average realized oil price after risk management contracts(1)   67.57 72.77 
(1) Non-GAAP ratio. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition. 
 
Realized losses on risk management contracts totaled $3.3 million or $29.04/boe for the first quarter of 2022, compared to gains of $0.1 million 
for the same period of 2021. Hedging losses are attributable to benchmark price fluctuations relative to pricing on commodity contracts with 
strengthening benchmark pricing. 
 
For the first quarter of 2022, Rubellite recorded an unrealized loss on risk management contracts of $10.6 million (Q4 2021 – $1.3 million 
unrealized loss). Unrealized gains and losses represent the change in mark-to-market value of risk management contracts as forward commodity 
prices and foreign exchange rates change. Unrealized gains and losses on risk management contracts are excluded from the Company’s 
calculation of cash flow from (used in) operating activities as non-cash items. Risk management contract gains and losses vary depending on 
the nature and extent of the risk management contracts in place, which in turn, vary with the Company’s assessment of commodity price risk, 
committed capital spending and other factors. 
 
Royalties 

  
($ thousands, except as noted)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Oil royalties – crown   694 277 
Oil royalties – freehold     424  127 

Total royalties    1,118  404 

$/boe    9.93  7.28 

     
Crown (% of oil revenue)(1)    6.4  7.1 
Freehold and overriding (% of oil revenue)(1)    3.9  3.2 

Total (% of oil revenue)(1)    10.3  10.3 
(1) Non-GAAP ratio. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition.  

 
Total royalties for the first quarter of 2022 were $1.1 million, 177% higher than the fourth quarter of 2021 as a result of increased production 
and higher reference prices. On a unit-of-production basis, royalties were up 36% to $9.93/boe (Q4 2021 – $7.28/boe). Royalties as a percentage 
of revenue for the first quarter of 2022 were 10.3% which was consistent with the fourth quarter of 2021. The Company expects royalties to 
average 11% to 12% of revenue for 2022.  
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Production and operating expenses 
   
($ thousands, except as noted)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Production and operating expenses    1,110  684 
$/boe    9.86  12.35 

 
Total production and operating expenses for the first quarter of 2022 increased significantly when compared to the fourth quarter as a result of 
increased production and a return to seasonal weather.  
 
Total production and operating expenses decreased 20% on a unit-of-production basis to $9.86/boe for the first quarter of 2022, compared to 
$12.35/boe for the fourth quarter of 2021. The decrease was the result of the effect of higher production across the fixed component of 
operating costs and higher operating costs during the prior quarter due to extreme cold weather in Alberta in December. Specifically, the fourth 
quarter of 2021 experienced increased costs related to pump changes, increased propane, chemicals, emulsion treating and overall contract 
services many of which were driven by the cold weather and the start-up operations for new wells.  
 
For 2022, the Company expects unit-of-production costs to normalize with growing production volumes. With the ongoing drilling activity, sales 
production levels are forecast to increase, and load oil recoveries are expected to represent a progressively lower percentage of sales production. 
On average, the Company expects operating costs to average between $5.50 and $6.50 per bbl. 
 
Transportation costs 

($ thousands, except as noted)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Transportation costs    653  323 
$/boe    5.80  5.83 

 
Transportation costs include clean oil trucking costs. For the first quarter of 2022, transportation costs were $0.7 million, an increase from the 
fourth quarter of 2021 as a result of increased production. On a unit-of-production basis, transportation costs were relatively unchanged at 
$5.80/boe in the first quarter of 2022 (Q4 2021 – $5.83/boe).  
 
The Company expects transportation costs to average between $5.50 and $6.50 per bbl in 2022. 
 
Operating netbacks 

 
“Operating netback” is a non-GAAP measure determined by deducting royalties, production and operating expenses, and transportation costs 
from oil revenue. Operating netback is also calculated on a per boe basis using total production sold in the period. Rubellite considers operating 
netback to be an important performance measure to evaluate its operational performance as it demonstrates its profitability relative to 
commodity prices. Operating netback is not a standardized measure and, therefore, may not be comparable with the calculation of similar 
measures by other entities.  
 
The following table highlights Rubellite’s operating netbacks: 

($/boe) ($ thousands)     Q1 2022  Q4 2021 

Production (bbl/d)      1,251   603 

Oil revenue     96.61 10,876 70.94    3,931 
 Royalties     (9.93) (1,118)          (7.28)     (404) 
Production and operating expenses     (9.86) (1,110) (12.35)     (684) 
 Transportation costs     (5.80) (653) (5.83)     (323) 

Operating netback(1)     71.02  7,995           45.48    2,520 
Realized gains (losses) on risk management contracts  (29.02) (3,269)   1.83 101 

Total operating netback, including risk management contracts  42.00 4,726 47.31    2,621 
(1) Non-GAAP measure. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition. 
 
For the first quarter, Rubellite’s operating netback, excluding risk management contracts, was $8.0 million ($71.02/boe) compared to $2.5 
million ($45.48/boe) in the fourth quarter of 2021. The increase was due to higher oil revenue driven by higher production and strong oil prices, 
with WTI benchmark prices of US$94.29/bbl for the period. This increase was partially offset by higher costs in all areas as a result of increased 
production and higher royalties per unit-of-production. 
 
For the first quarter, Rubellite’s operating netback, including risk management contracts, was $4.7 million ($42.00/boe) compared to $2.6 million 
($47.31/boe) in the fourth quarter of 2021 as realized losses on risk management contracts reduced operating netbacks by $3.3 million 
($29.02/bbl). On a unit-of-production basis, operating netbacks, including risk management contracts decreased due to the realized losses from 
risk management contracts and higher royalties.  
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General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses 

($ thousands, except as noted) Q1 2022  Q4 2021 

G&A expenses – excluding MSA costs (1)  404 180 
G&A expenses – MSA costs (1) 313 303 

Total G&A expenses 717 483 

$/boe  6.37 8.70 
(1) In conjunction with the Arrangement, Rubellite has a MSA with Perpetual whereby Rubellite makes payment for certain technical and administrative services 

provided to Rubellite on a relative production split cost sharing basis. 

 
In conjunction with the Arrangement, Rubellite entered into a Management and Operating Services Agreement (“MSA”) with Perpetual whereby 
Rubellite makes payments for certain technical and administrative services provided to Rubellite on a relative production split cost sharing basis. 
For the first quarter of 2022, the costs billed under the MSA to Rubellite were $0.3 million which was consistent with the fourth quarter of 2021.  
 
During the first quarter of 2022, G&A expenses, excluding MSA costs, were $0.4 million as compared to $0.2 million in the fourth quarter of 
2021. General and administrative expenses, excluding MSA costs, consist primarily of legal fees, information systems licenses, audit fees, 
reserves assessment and tax related consulting fees. The increase in costs in the first quarter of 2022 related to increased legal fees for 
professional services. On a unit-of-production basis, G&A costs decreased to $6.37/boe from $8.70/boe in the fourth quarter of 2021 as a result 
of increased production which more than offset higher costs.  
 
Depletion  
 

($ thousands, except as noted) Q1 2022  Q4 2021 

Depletion  2,258 1,095 
$/boe  20.05  19.74 

 
The Company calculates depletion using the net book value of the asset, future development costs associated with proved and probable reserves, 
salvage values on associated production equipment, as well as proved plus probable reserves. As at March 31, 2022, depletion was calculated 
on a $94.6 million depletable balance (December 31, 2021 – $74.0 million), $33.9 million in future development costs (December 31, 2021 – 
$46.5 million) and excluded an estimated $0.4 million of salvage value (December 31, 2021 – $0.4 million). 
 
Depletion expense for the first quarter of 2022 was $2.3 million or $20.05/boe (Q4 2021 – $1.1 million or $19.74/boe). The increase from the 
fourth quarter of 2021 reflects the increase in production volumes, and an increase in the depletable base on higher capital spending and 
increased proved plus probable reserves.  
 
Impairment 
 
In accordance with IFRS, the Company is required to assess when internal or external indicators of impairment exist, and impairment testing is 
required. At March 31, 2022, the Company conducted an assessment of indicators of impairment for the Company’s cash-generating unit 
(“CGU”). In performing the assessment, management determined there were no indicators of impairment.   
 
E&E assets are tested for impairment when internal or external indicators of impairment exist as well as upon their eventual reclassification to 
oil and natural gas properties in PP&E. At March 31, 2022, the Company conducted an assessment of indicators of impairment for the Company’s 
E&E assets. In performing the assessment, management determined there were no indicators of impairment. During the first quarter of 2022, 
there were no transfers of E&E assets to PP&E.  
 

LIQUIDITY, CAPITALIZATION AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES 
  
Rubellite’s strategy targets the maintenance of a strong capital base to retain investor, creditor and market confidence to support the execution 
of its business plans. The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts its capital spending in light of changes in economic conditions, 
available liquidity, and the risk characteristics of its underlying heavy oil assets. The Company considers its capital structure to include share 
capital, revolving bank debt, and adjusted working capital. To manage its capital structure and available liquidity, the Company may from time 
to time issue equity or debt securities, sell assets, and adjust its capital spending to manage current and projected debt levels. The Company 
will continue to regularly assess changes to its capital structure, with considerations for both short-term liquidity and long-term financial 
sustainability. 
 
Rubellite uses net debt, adjusted working capital, enterprise value and trailing twelve-months adjusted funds flow as important indicators of 
capital resources, management and liquidity. Net debt includes the carrying value of net bank debt and deducting any borrowings from adjusted 
working capital. Adjusted working capital is current assets less current liabilities, adjusted for the removal of the current portion of risk 
management contracts. Rubellite uses net debt as an alternative measure of outstanding debt. Management considers net debt and adjusted 
working capital as important measures in assessing the liquidity of the Company. Net debt, net bank debt, and net debt to adjusted funds flow 
ratios are used by management to assess the Company’s overall debt position and borrowing capacity. For calculation of adjusted working 
capital and adjusted funds flow, refer to the section entitled “Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures” contained within this MD&A.  
 
Enterprise value is calculated by multiplying the current shares outstanding by the market price at the end of the period and then adjusting it 
by the net debt. The Company considers enterprise value as an important measure as it normalizes the market value of the Company’s shares 
for its capital structure.  
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Capital Management  
  

($ thousands, except as noted) March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Revolving bank debt – – 
Adjusted working capital surplus(1) (10,858) (5,375) 

Net debt(1) (10,858) (5,375) 

Shares outstanding at end of period (thousands) 54,723 43,809 
Market price at end of period ($/share)   3.82  2.24 
Market value of shares(1) 209,042 98,132 

Enterprise value(1) 198,184 92,757 
(1) Non-GAAP measure. Refer to the section entitled "Non-GAAP and Other Financial Measures" contained within this MD&A for an explanation of composition. 

 
At March 31, 2022, Rubellite had an adjusted working capital surplus of $10.9 million, up from $5.4 million from December 31, 2021 as a result 
of the $38.7 million equity financings that closed on March 30, 2022, partially offset by the $21.8 million first quarter capital program spent to 
drill eleven (9.5 net) wells during the first quarter of 2022 and exploratory land purchases during the first quarter of $13.7 million.  
 
Rubellite had available liquidity at March 31, 2022 of $52.5 million, comprised of the $25.0 million Credit Facility Borrowing Limit and cash and 
cash equivalents of $27.5 million. On March 5, 2022, the borrowing limit on the Company’s reserves-based revolving credit facility was increased 
to $25.0 million and the initial term was extended by 12 months to May 31, 2023. 
 
Equity 
 
At March 31, 2022 there were 54.7 million common shares outstanding and 4.0 million Share Purchase Warrants. On March 30, 2022 Rubellite 
completed bought deal and non-brokered private placement financings, raising gross proceeds of $38.7 million through the issuance of 
approximately 10.9 million shares priced at $3.55 per share.  
 
The following table summarizes information about options and performance and restricted awards outstanding as the date of this MD&A: 
 

(millions) May 11, 2022 

Restricted share units   213 
Share options   765 
Performance share units   323 

Total 1,301 

 
Commodity price risk management 

As at May 11, 2022, the Company had entered into the following commodity swap contracts: 
 

Commodity 

Volumes sold 
(bbl/d) 

 
Term Reference/Index 

 Contract Traded  
Bought/sold 

Average Price 
(CAD$/bbl) 

Crude Oil  500 bbl/d Apr 1 – Jun 30, 2022 WTI (CAD$/bbl)  Swap – sold  $92.77 

Crude Oil  200 bbl/d Apr 1 – Jun 30, 2022 WTI (CAD$/bbl)  Swap – sold  $104.61 

Crude Oil 700 bbl/d Jun 1 – Jun 30, 2022 WCS FP (CAD$/bbl)  Swap – buy $101.80 

Crude Oil  600 bbl/d Apr 1 – Dec 31, 2022 WTI (CAD$/bbl)  Swap – sold  $88.05 

Crude Oil  500 bbl/d Jul 1 – Dec 31, 2022 WTI (CAD$/bbl)  Swap – sold  $95.28 

Crude Oil  200 bbl/d Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2022 WCS FP (CAD$/bbl)  Swap – sold $76.15 

Crude Oil 100 bbl/d Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2023 WTI (USD$/bbl)  Swap – sold $64.50 

 
As at May 11, 2022, the Company entered into the following swap WTI-WCS basis differential: 
 

Commodity Volumes sold  
 

Term Reference/Index 
Average Price 

(CAD$/bbl) 

Crude Oil 500 bbl/d Apr 1 - June 30, 2022 WCS Differential  (20.93) 
Crude Oil 800 bbl/d Apr 1 – Dec 31, 2022 WCS Differential  (17.88) 
Crude Oil 300 bbl/d Jul 1 – Dec 31, 2022 WCS Differential  (17.55) 
Crude Oil 200 bbl/d Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2023 WCS Differential  (17.75) 

 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTRUAL OBLIGATIONS  
 
Rubellite has no operating commitments and no amounts are currently drawn under the Credit Facility. 
 

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

 
Rubellite has no off balance sheet arrangements. 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
In conjunction with the Arrangement, Rubellite entered into the MSA with Perpetual whereby Perpetual receives payment for certain technical 
and administrative services provided to Rubellite on a cost recovery basis. For the period ended March 31, 2022, the amount of general and 
administrative costs charged to Rubellite through the MSA was $0.3 million. As a result of various other transactions between the parties, the 
Company recorded an accounts payable of $1.8 million owing to Perpetual.  
 

NON-GAAP AND OTHER FINANCIAL MEASURES 

 
Throughout this MD&A and in other materials disclosed by the Company, Rubellite employs certain measures to analyze financial performance, 
financial position and cash flow. These non-GAAP and other financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed under IFRS 
and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other entities. The non-GAAP and other financial measures should not 
be considered to be more meaningful than GAAP measures which are determined in accordance with IFRS, such as net income (loss), cash flow 
from operating activities, and cash flow from investing activities, as indicators of Rubellite’s performance. 
 
Non-GAAP Financial Measures 
 
Capital Expenditures: Rubellite uses capital expenditures related to exploration and development to measure its capital investments compared 
to the Company’s annual capital budgeted expenditures. Rubellite’s capital budget excludes acquisition and disposition activities as well as the 
accounting impact of any accrual changes.  
 
The most directly comparable GAAP measure for capital expenditures is cash flow used in investing activities. A summary of the reconciliation 
of cash flow used in investing activities to capital expenditures, is set forth below: 

 
   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Net cash flows used in investing activities    28,472 71,062 
Acquisitions    – (59,373) 
Change in non-cash working capital    7,039 5,491 

Capital expenditures     35,511  17,180 

 
Operating netbacks and total operating netbacks after risk management contracts: Operating netback is calculated by deducting 
royalties, production and operating expenses, and transportation costs from oil revenue. Operating netback is also calculated on a per boe basis 
using total production sold in the period. Total operating netbacks after management contracts is presented after adjusting for realized gains 
or losses from risk management contracts. Rubellite considers that netback is a key industry performance indicator and one that provides 
investors with information that is also commonly presented by other crude oil and natural gas producers. Rubellite considers operating netback 
to be an important performance measure to evaluate its operational performance as it demonstrates its profitability relative to current commodity 
prices. Rubellite considers the presentation after risk management contracts an important measure to evaluate performance after risk 
management activities. Refer to reconciliations in the MD&A under the “Operating Netbacks” section. 
 
Net Debt: Net debt is calculated by deducting any borrowing from adjusted working capital. Adjusted working capital is current assets less 
current liabilities, adjusted for the removal of the current portion of risk management contracts. Rubellite uses net debt as an alternative 
measure of outstanding debt. Management considers net debt and adjusted working capital as important measures in assessing the liquidity of 
the Company. Net debt, net bank debt, and net debt to adjusted funds flow ratios are used by management to assess the Company’s overall 
debt position and borrowing capacity. Net debt to adjusted funds flow ratios are calculated on a trailing twelve-month basis. Net debt is not a 
standardized measure and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other entities. 
 
Adjusted working capital: Adjusted working capital deficiency or surplus includes total current assets and current liabilities excluding short-
term risk management contract assets and liabilities related to the Company’s risk management activities and any borrowings under the revolving 
bank debt. 
 
The following table reconciles adjusted working capital and net debt as reported in the Company’s statements of financial position: 

   
  As at March 31, 2022 As at December 31, 2021 

Current assets  37,165 22,441 
Current liabilities   (37,509) (18,317) 

Working capital (surplus) deficiency  344 (4,124) 
Risk management contracts – current asset  – 62 
Risk management contracts – current liability    (11,202) (1,313) 

Adjusted working capital surplus  (10,858) (5,375) 
Bank indebtedness   – – 

Net debt  (10,858) (5,375) 

 
Adjusted funds flow: Adjusted funds flow is calculated based on net cash flows from operating activities, excluding changes in non-cash 
working capital and expenditures on decommissioning obligations since the Company believes the timing of collection, payment or incurrence 
of these items is variable. Expenditures on decommissioning obligations may vary from period to period depending on capital programs and the 
maturity of Rubellite's operating areas. Expenditures on decommissioning obligations are managed through the capital budgeting process which 
considers available adjusted funds flow. Management uses adjusted funds flow and adjusted funds flow per boe as key measures to assess the 
ability of the Company to generate the funds necessary to finance capital expenditures, expenditures on decommissioning obligations and meet 
its financial obligations. 
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Adjusted funds flow pre-transaction costs is calculated as adjusted funds flow less transaction costs. Management has excluded transaction 
costs from the calculation as these are not related to cash flow from operating activities as they relate to the acquisition of the Clearwater assets 
from Perpetual in the comparative period. 
 
Adjusted funds flow per share is calculated using the weighted average number of basic and diluted shares outstanding used in calculating net 
income (loss) per share. Adjusted funds flow is not intended to represent net cash flows from operating activities calculated in accordance with 
IFRS.  
 
Adjusted funds flow per boe is calculated as adjusted funds flow divided by total oil production sold in the period.  
 
The following table reconciles net cash flows from operating activities as reported in the Company’s condensed interim statements of cash flows, 
to adjusted funds flow and adjusted funds flow - pre transaction costs: 

   
($ thousands, except as noted)   Q1 2022 Q4 2021 

Net cash flows from operating activities    3,192 1,115 
Change in non-cash working capital     643  354 

Adjusted funds flow    3,835 1,469 

Add back: transaction costs    –  689 

Adjusted funds flow – pre transaction costs     3,835  2,158 

     
Adjusted funds flow per share - basic     0.09  0.03 
Adjusted funds flow per share - diluted   0.09 0.03 

Adjusted funds flow per boe    34.06 26.50 

 
Adjusted funds flow – pre transaction costs - basic    0.09  0.06 
Adjusted funds flow – pre transaction costs - diluted   0.09 0.06 

Adjusted funds flow – pre transaction costs - per boe    34.06  38.93 

 
Available Liquidity: Available liquidity is defined as Rubellite’s reserve-based credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) borrowing limit (the 
“Borrowing Limit”), plus any cash and cash equivalents, less any borrowings and letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility. Management 
uses available liquidity to assess the ability of the Company to finance capital expenditures and expenditures on decommissioning obligations, 
and to meet its financial obligations. 
 
Enterprise value: Enterprise value is equal to net debt plus the market value of issued equity, and is used by management to analyze leverage. 
Enterprise value is calculated by multiplying the current shares outstanding by the market price at the end of the period and then adjusting it 
by the net debt. The Company considers enterprise value as an important measure as it normalizes the market value of the Company’s shares 
for its capital structure.  
 
Non-GAAP Financial Ratios 
 
Rubellite calculates certain non-GAAP measures per boe as the measure divided by weighted average daily production. Management believes 
that per boe ratios are a key industry performance measure of operational efficiency and one that provides investors with information that is 
also commonly presented by other crude oil and natural gas producers. Rubellite also calculates certain non-GAAP measures per share as the 
measure divided by outstanding common shares, weighted average common shares or diluted weighted average common shares.  
 
Net debt to adjusted funds flow ratio: Net debt to adjusted funds flow ratios are calculated on a trailing twelve-month basis.  
 
Supplementary Financial Measures  

"Average realized oil price" is comprised of total oil revenue, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by the Company's total sales oil 
production on a per barrel basis.  
 
"Average realized price after gain or loss on risk management" is comprised of realized gain on risk management contracts, as determined in 
accordance with IFRS, divided by the Company's total sales oil production.  
 
"Royalties as a percentage of oil revenue" is comprised of royalties, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by oil revenue from sales 
oil production as determined in accordance with IFRS. 
 
"Royalties per boe" is comprised of royalties, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by the Company's total sales oil production. 
 
"Production and operating expense per boe" is comprised of operating expense, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by the 
Company's total sales oil production.  
 
"Transportation cost per boe" is comprised of transportation cost, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by the Company's total sales 
oil production.  
 
"G&A expense per boe" is comprised of G&A expense, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by the Company's total sales oil 
production. 
 
"Depletion and depreciation expense per boe" is comprised of DD&A expense, as determined in accordance with IFRS, divided by the Company's 
total sales oil production.  
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“Market value of shares” is comprised of common shares outstanding multiplied by the market price of shares.  
 
“Adjusted funds flow per share” is calculated using the weighted average number of basic and diluted shares outstanding used in calculating 
net income (loss) per share. 
 

FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee regularly issue new and revised accounting 
pronouncements which have future effective dates and therefore are not reflected in Rubellite’s financial statements. Once adopted, these new 
and amended pronouncements may have an impact on Rubellite’s condensed interim financial statements. Rubellite’s analysis of recent 
accounting pronouncements is included in the notes to the financial statements at December 31, 2021 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Corporation is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Each regulatory body, including the Toronto Stock 
Exchange and the Canadian provincial securities commissions, has a different set of rules pertaining to corporate governance. The Corporation 
fully conforms to the rules of the governing bodies under which it operates. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures 
 
There were no changes in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting during the period beginning on January 1, 2022 and ended 
March 31, 2022 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting. 

 

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION  

 
Certain information in this MD&A including management's assessment of future plans and operations, and including the information contained 
under the headings “Operations Update”, “Land Acquisition Update” and “2022 Outlook and Guidance” may constitute forward-looking 
information or statements (together "forward-looking information") under applicable securities laws. The forward-looking information includes, 
without limitation, statements with respect to: future capital expenditure and production forecasts;  and the anticipated sources of funds to be 
used for capital spending; expectations as to drilling activity plans in various areas and the benefits to be derived from such drilling including 
the production growth; expectations respecting Rubellite's future exploration, development and drilling activities and Rubellite's business plan. 
 
Forward-looking information is based on current expectations, estimates and projections that involve a number of known and unknown risks, 
which could cause actual results to vary and in some instances to differ materially from those anticipated by Rubellite and described in the 
forward-looking information contained in this MD&A. In particular and without limitation of the foregoing, material factors or assumptions on 
which the forward-looking information in this MD&A is based include: the successful operation of the Clearwater assets; forecast commodity 
prices and other pricing assumptions; forecast production volumes based on business and market conditions; foreign exchange and interest 
rates; near-term pricing and continued volatility of the market; accounting estimates and judgments; future use and development of technology 
and associated expected future results; the ability to obtain regulatory approvals; the successful and timely implementation of capital projects; 
ability to generate sufficient cash flow to meet current and future obligations; Rubellite's ability to operate under the management of Perpetual 
pursuant to the management services agreement; the ability of Rubellite to obtain and retain qualified staff and equipment in a timely and cost-
efficient manner, as applicable; the retention of key properties; forecast inflation, supply chain access and other assumptions inherent in 
Rubellite's current guidance and estimates; the continuance of existing tax, royalty, and regulatory regimes; the accuracy of the estimates of 
reserves volumes; ability to access and implement technology necessary to efficiently and effectively operate assets; and the ongoing and future 
impact of the coronavirus and Russia's invasion of Ukraine and related sanctions on commodity prices and the global economy, among others. 
 
Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking information, which is not a guarantee of performance and is subject to a number of 
risks or uncertainties, including without limitation those described herein and under "Risk Factors" in Rubellite’s Annual Information Form and 
MD&A for the year ended December 31, 2021 and in other reports on file with Canadian securities regulatory authorities which may be accessed 
through the SEDAR website (www.sedar.com) and at Rubellite's website (www.rubelliteenergy.com). Readers are cautioned that the foregoing 
list of risk factors is not exhaustive. Forward-looking information is based on the estimates and opinions of Rubellite’s management at the time 
the information is released, and Rubellite disclaims any intent or obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking information, whether 
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, other than as expressly required by applicable securities law. 

http://www.sedar.com/
http://www.rubelliteenergy.com/
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GLOSSARY 
 
The following is a list of abbreviations that may be used in this MD&A: 
 
Measurement:    
 
bbl  barrel 
bbl/d  barrels per day 
Mbbl  thousand barrels 
MMbbl  million barrels 
boe(1)  barrels of oil equivalent 
boe/d(1)  barrels of oil equivalent per day 
Mboe(1)  thousands of barrels of oil equivalent 
 
Volume Conversions: 
 
This MD&A contains certain oil and gas metrics which do not have standardized meanings or standard methods of calculation and therefore 
such measures may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companies and should not be used to make comparisons. Such 
metrics have been included in this document to provide readers with additional measures to evaluate Rubellite's performance; however, such 
measures are not reliable indicators of Rubellite's future performance and future performance may not compare to Rubellite's performance in 
previous periods and therefore such metrics should not be unduly relied upon. 
 
Barrel of oil equivalent (“boe”) may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. In accordance with National Instrument 51-101 (“NI 51-
101”), a conversion ratio for conventional natural gas of 6 Mcf:1 bbl has been used, which is based on an energy equivalency conversion method 
primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. In addition, utilizing a conversion on a 6 Mcf:1 
bbl basis may be misleading as an indicator of value as the value ratio between conventional natural gas and heavy crude oil, based on the 
current prices of natural gas and crude oil, differ significantly from the energy equivalency of 6 Mcf:1 bbl. A conversion ratio of 1 bbl of heavy 
crude oil to 1 bbl of NGL has also been used throughout this MD&A. Refer to the “Production” section of this MD&A for details of constituent 
product components that comprise Rubellite’s boe production. 
 
Initial Production Rates:  
 
Any references in this MD&A to initial production rates are useful in confirming the presence of hydrocarbons; however, such rates are not 
determinative of the rates at which such wells will continue production and decline thereafter and are not necessarily indicative of long-term 
performance or ultimate recovery. Readers are cautioned not to place reliance on such rates in calculating the aggregate production for the 
Company. Such rates are based on field estimates and may be based on limited data available at this time. 
 
Financial and Business Environment: 
 
AECO  Alberta Energy Company (natural gas benchmark hub) 
E&E  Exploration and evaluation 
ESG Environmental, social and governance  
GAAP  Generally accepted accounting principles 
G&A  General and administrative 
IAS  International Accounting Standard 
IASB  International Accounting Standards Board 
IFRS  International Financial Reporting Standards 
PP&E  Property, plant and equipment 
TSX  Toronto Stock Exchange 
WTI  West Texas Intermediate 
WCS Western Canadian Select 
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RUBELLITE ENERGY INC. 

Condensed Interim Statements of Financial Position 
  

 
As at  March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

(Cdn$ thousands, unaudited )   

   

Assets   

Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 27,485  $ 15,287 

Accounts receivable    9,533   6,845 

Prepaid expenses and deposits 147 247 

Risk management contracts (note 12) – 62 

 37,165 22,441 

   

Property, plant and equipment (note 3,4) 92,347 72,661 

Exploration and evaluation (note 3,5) 25,351 11,614 

Deferred tax asset (note 3) 9,146 9,146 

Total assets  $ 164,009  $ 115,862 

   

Liabilities   

Current liabilities   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 26,307  $ 17,004 

Risk management contracts (note 12)   11,202   1,313 

 37,509   18,317 

   

Decommissioning obligations (note 3, 6) 2,154   1,976 

Risk management contracts (note 12) 715                                    86 

Total liabilities 40,378   20,379 

   

Equity   

Share capital (note 3,7) 122,633   85,474 

Share purchase warrants (note 3,7) 2,000   2,000 

Contributed surplus (note 8)  568   307 

Retained earnings (deficit) (1,570)   7,702 

Total equity 123,631   95,483 

Total liabilities and equity  $ 164,009  $ 115,862 

   
 
See accompanying notes to the condensed interim financial statements. 

 

 

 
 

 
Holly Benson  
Director 

Bruce Shultz  
Director 
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RUBELLITE ENERGY INC. 

Condensed Interim Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss 
 

 Three months ended 
March 31, 2022 

(Cdn$ thousands, except per share amounts, unaudited)  
  
Revenue  

Oil  (note 9)  $ 10,876 
Royalties   (1,118) 

   9,758 
Realized loss on risk management contracts (note 12)   (3,269) 
Unrealized loss on risk management contracts (note 12)   (10,580) 

 (4,091) 
  
Expenses  

Production and operating 1,110 
Transportation 653 
General and administrative (note 3) 717 
Share based payments (note 8)  261 

   Depletion (note 4) 2,258 

 (9,090) 
  
Finance expense (note 11) (182) 

Loss before income tax  (9,272) 
 
Taxes  

 

   Deferred income tax expense  – 

Net loss and comprehensive loss (9,272) 

  
Net loss per share (note 7)  
Basic and diluted        $ (0.21) 

 
See accompanying notes to the condensed interim financial statements. 
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RUBELLITE ENERGY INC. 

Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity 
 

 Share Capital 
Share 

purchase 
warrants 

Contributed 
surplus 

Retained 
earnings 
(deficit) 

Total  
Equity (thousands) ($thousands) 

(Cdn$ thousands, except share amounts, unaudited)       
       

Balance at December 31, 2021 43,809  $ 85,474   $ 2,000    $ 307   $ 7,702  $ 95,483 

Net loss –   – – – (9,272) (9,272) 

Common shares issued, net of issue costs (note 7) 10,914 37,159 – – – 37,159 

Share-based payments (note 8) – – – 261 – 261 

Balance at March 31, 2022 54,723   $ 122,633   $ 2,000    $ 568   $ (1,570)   $123,631 

 
See accompanying notes to the condensed interim financial statements. 
  



 

 

RUBELLITE ENERGY INC. 

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flows 

 

 
Three months ended  

March 31, 2022 

(Cdn$ thousands, unaudited)  

Cash flows from operating activities  
  

Net loss   $  (9,272) 
Adjustments to add (deduct) non-cash items:  

Depletion (note 4)    2,258 

Share-based payments (note 8)    261 

Unrealized loss on risk management contracts     10,580 

Finance - accretion on decommissioning obligations (note 6)    8 

Change in non-cash working capital     (643) 

Net cash flows from operating activities    3,192 

  

Cash flows from financing activities  

  

Common shares issued    38,744 

Share issue costs    (1,585) 

Change in non-cash working capital     319 

Net cash flows from financing activities    37,478 

  

Cash flows used in investing activities  
  

Capital expenditures (note 4, 5)    (35,511) 

Change in non-cash working capital     7,039 

Net cash flows used in investing activities     (28,472) 

  

Change in cash and cash equivalents    12,198 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    15,287 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 27,485 

 
See accompanying notes to the condensed interim financial statements. 

  



 

 

RUBELLITE ENERGY INC. 

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) 
For the three months ended March 31, 2022 
(All tabular amounts are in Cdn$ thousands, except where otherwise noted) 

 

 
1. REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Rubellite Energy Inc. (“Rubellite” or the “Company”) is an oil exploration and production company headquartered in Calgary, Alberta that was 
incorporated on July 12, 2021 under the Business Corporation’s Act (Alberta). 
 
The address of the Company’s registered office is 3200, 605 – 5 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2P 3H5. 
 
The condensed interim financial statements of the Company as at and for the three months ended March 31, 2022 are comprised of the accounts 
of Rubellite. There is no comparative information for the three months ended March 31, 2021, as the Company was not incorporated until July 
12, 2021, with the operating activity only commencing on September 3, 2021, the effective date of completion of the plan of arrangement 
between Perpetual Energy Inc. (“Perpetual”), Perpetual shareholders and Rubellite (the “Arrangement”) (note 3). 
 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and do not include all 
of the information required for full annual financial statements. These condensed interim financial statements should be read in conjunction 
with the Company’s financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021 which were prepared in conformity with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 
 
The accounting policies, basis of measurement, critical accounting judgements and significant estimates used to prepare the annual consolidated 
financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021 have been applied in the preparation of these condensed interim financial 
statements.  
 
These financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 11, 2022. 
 
3. ACQUISITION OF CLEARWATER ASSETS AND COMMENCEMENT OF OIL AND GAS OPERATIONS 
 
On September 3, 2021, the effective date of the completion of the Arrangement, Rubellite became a standalone public entity and began trading 
on the Toronto Stock Exchange on September 9, 2021. The Clearwater Assets were acquired for aggregate consideration of $65.5 million. The 
consideration consisted of promissory notes totalling $59.4 million, which were paid in cash on October 5, 2021, the issuance of 680,485 
Rubellite common shares valued at $1.3 million, the return of 8.2 million Perpetual common shares exchanged in the Arrangement valued at 
$2.8 million and issuance of warrants to purchase 4.0 million Rubellite common shares at a price of $3.00 per share for a period of five years, 
valued at $2.0 million. 
 
The acquisition was accounted for as a business combination using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed were recorded at the estimated fair value on September 3, 2021. There were $1.1 million of transaction costs incurred by 
the Company and expensed through earnings during 2021. In conjunction with the Arrangement, Rubellite entered into a Management and 
Operating Services Agreement (“MSA”) with Perpetual whereby Perpetual receives payment for certain technical and administrative services 
provided to Rubellite on a cost recovery basis. For the quarter ended March 31, 2022, the amount of general and administrative costs charged 
to Rubellite through the MSA was $0.3 million (period ended December 31, 2021 - $0.4 million). As a result of various other transactions between 
the parties, the Company recorded an accounts payable of $1.8 million owing to Perpetual (December 31, 2021 – accounts receivable of $3.9 
million and accounts payable of $3.8 million).  
 
The determination of the purchase price, based on management’s estimate of fair values is as follows: 
 

Assets acquired     
 

Oil and natural gas interests (note 4)     $ 56,489 
Exploration and evaluation assets (note 5)      10,067 
Cash      4,051 
Net working capital, excluding cash      (4,873) 
Decommissioning provisions (note 6)      (220) 

Net assets acquired       $ 65,514 

 
With the recognition of a $9.1 million deferred tax asset at September 3, 2021, a gain of $9.1 million was recognized in net income in 2021. 
There has been no change to the deferred tax asset during the first quarter of 2022.  
 
  



 

 

 
Purchase consideration  

   

 

Promissory note – Perpetual(1)    53,600 

Promissory note - 197Co(2)    5,773 

Consideration to be paid in cash      59,373 

Rubellite common shares(3)     1,361 

Perpetual common shares returned(4)     2,780 
Share purchase warrants(5)   2,000 
Total purchase consideration      $ 65,514 

(1) Promissory notes owed to Perpetual, secured by certain Clearwater properties, and due on demand, which were settled in cash on October 5, 2021.  
(2) Promissory notes assumed by Rubellite from Perpetual and owing to 1974918 Alberta Ltd. (“197Co”), a company controlled by Perpetual’s President and Chief 

Executive Officer. These promissory notes are secured by certain Clearwater properties, and due on demand, and were settled in cash on October 5, 2021.  
(3) Rubellite issued to Perpetual 680,485 Rubellite Shares valued at $1.3 million. 
(4) Rubellite returned to Perpetual 8.2 million Perpetual common shares valued at $2.8 million received on the initial capitalization of the Company.  
(5) Represents the estimated value of 4.0 million Rubellite common share purchase warrants at $3.00 per share exercise price and valued at $2.0 million. Share 

purchase warrants have been valued using the Black Scholes model using the following assumptions: Expected volatility of 40%, risk-free interest rate of 

1.2%, dividend yield of nil, contractual life of 5-years, share price at grant date of $2.00 and exercise price of $3.00. 

 
The above amounts to determine the net assets acquired were estimates, which were made by management using information available at the 
time of the closing of the Arrangement. For purposes of estimating the acquisition-date fair value of oil and natural gas interests, the Company’s 
internal reserve evaluator provided an estimate of proved and probable oil and gas reserves and the related cash flows. Exploration and 
evaluation assets were fair valued based on an independent third party report reflecting the estimated market value of undeveloped land. The 
estimated proved and probable oil and natural gas reserves and related cash flows were discounted at a rate of 10%. The fair value of 
decommissioning obligations was initially estimated using a credit adjusted risk-free rate of 7.0% and an implied inflation rate of 1.73%.  
 
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

   Oil and Natural 
Gas Interests 

Cost    
Acquisitions (note 3)      $ 56,489 
Change in decommissioning obligations related to PP&E (note 6)   1,750 
Additions   15,811 

December 31, 2021      $ 74,050 
Additions     21,774 
Change in decommissioning obligations related to PP&E (note 6)     170 

March 31, 2022    $ 95,994 

    
Accumulated depletion    
Depletion      $   1,389 
December 31, 2021      $ 1,389 
Depletion      2,258 

March 31, 2022    $ 3,647 

 
Carrying amount     
December 31, 2021    $ 72,661 
March 31, 2022    $ 92,347 

 
As at March 31, 2022, forecasted future development costs of $33.9 million (December 31, 2021 – $46.5 million) associated with proved and 
probable oil and gas reserves were included in the depletion calculation and an estimated $0.4 million (December 31, 2021 – $0.4 million) of 
salvage value for production equipment was excluded.  
 
a) Cash-generating units and impairment 
 
In accordance with IFRS, the Company is required to assess when internal or external indicators of impairment exist, and impairment testing is 
required. At March 31, 2022, the Company conducted an assessment of indicators of impairment for the Company’s cash-generating unit 
(“CGU”). In performing the assessment, management determined there were no indicators of impairment.   
 
5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION 
 

 March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Balance, beginning of period  $ 11,614  $ – 
Acquisitions (note 3)   –   10,067 
Additions   13,737   1,547 

Balance, end of period  $ 25,351  $ 11,614 

 



 

 

Impairment of E&E assets 
 
E&E assets are tested for impairment when internal or external indicators of impairment exist as well as upon their eventual reclassification to 
oil and natural gas interests in PP&E. At March 31, 2022, the Company conducted an assessment of indicators of impairment for the Company’s 
E&E assets. In performing the assessment, management determined there were no indicators of impairment. 
 
6. DECOMMISSIONING OBLIGATIONS 

 

The following table summarizes changes in decommissioning obligations: 
 

 March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Balance, beginning of period  $ 1,976  $ – 
Obligations incurred   564   894 
Obligations acquired (note 3)   –   220 
Change in rate on acquisition    –   496 
Revisions to estimates   (394)                             360 
Accretion    8   6 

Total decommissioning obligations  $ 2,154  $ 1,976 

 
Decommissioning obligations are estimated based on the Company’s net ownership interest in all wells and facilities, estimated costs to reclaim 
and abandon these wells and facilities, and the estimated timing of the costs to be incurred in future periods.  
 
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time, which is referred to as accretion, is recognized as non-cash finance expense in the 
statements of income or loss and comprehensive income or loss. Decommissioning obligations are further adjusted at each period end date for 
changes in the risk-free interest rate, after considering additions and dispositions of PP&E. Decommissioning obligations are also adjusted for 
revisions to future cost estimates and the estimated timing of costs to be incurred in future periods. 
 
The change in rate on acquisition reflects the impact of discounting the decommissioning obligation at the credit adjusted discount rate of 7.0% 
at the time of acquisition and then adjusting to the risk-free rate thereafter. 
 
The following significant assumptions were used to estimate the Company’s decommissioning obligations: 
 

 March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Undiscounted obligations  $ 2,457  $ 1,913 
Average risk-free rate   2.4%   1.7% 
Inflation rate   1.8%   1.8% 
Expected timing of settling obligations 25 years 25 years 

 

7. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
a) Authorized 

 
Authorized capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares.  
 
b)    Issued and outstanding 
 

  March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
 
 

Shares  
(thousands) 

Amount  
($thousands) 

Shares  
(thousands) 

Amount  
($thousands) 

Balance, beginning of period  43,809   $ 85,474 –  $ – 
Issued pursuant to plan of arrangement  – – 2,128   4,141 
Issued pursuant to warrant exercise  – – 16,681   33,470 
Issued pursuant to private placement  3,784 13,432 10,000   20,000 
Issued pursuant to subscription receipt financing  – – 15,000               30,000 
Issued pursuant to bought deal offering 7,130 25,312 –                     – 
Share issue costs – (1,585) –         (2,137) 

Balance, end of period 54,723   $ 122,633 43,809  $ 85,474 

 
As of March 31, 2022 there were 4.0 million Rubellite common share purchase warrants exercisable at $3.00 per share which expire in July 
2026.  
 
During the first quarter of 2022, the Company closed a bought deal financing resulting in the issuance of 7.1 million common shares at $3.55 
per Rubellite common share for total gross proceeds of $25.3 million. The Company also closed a private placement resulting in the issuance of 
3.8 million common shares at $3.55 per Rubellite common share for total gross proceeds of $13.4 million.   
 
As described in note 3, as part of the purchase consideration for the acquisition of the Clearwater Assets, Rubellite issued Perpetual 680,485 
Rubellite common shares valued at $1.3 million. Rubellite returned to Perpetual 8.2 million Perpetual common shares valued at $2.8 million 
received on the initial capitalization of the Company, in exchange for 1.4 million Rubellite common shares.   
 



 

 

Rubellite completed a series of financings (the “Rubellite Financings”) at $2.00 per Rubellite common share equivalent as follows: 
 

(i) a backstopped Arrangement Warrant financing, which closed on October 5, 2021 and resulted in the issuance of 16.7 million 
Rubellite common shares for total proceeds of $33.5 million;  
 

(ii) a non-brokered $20.0 million private placement financing that closed on October 5, 2021, resulting in the issuance of 10.0 million 
Rubellite common shares; and  
 

(iii) a brokered $30.0 million subscription receipt financing (15.0 million subscription receipts) that closed on July 13, 2021 with cash 
held in escrow by a third-party trustee that was released on October 5, 2021. On October 5, 2021, each subscription receipt 
issued was exchanged on a one-to-one basis for 15.0 million common shares of Rubellite.  

 
c)    Per share information   
 

 
(thousands, except per share amounts) 

Three months ended  
March 31, 2022 

Net loss    $ (9,272) 

   
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic and diluted     43,930 

   
Net loss per share – basic and diluted   $ (0.21) 

 
Per share amounts have been calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. For the period ended March 31, 
2022, 5.3 million common shares issuable upon the exercise and/or settlement of warrants, share options, restricted share units and performance 
share units were excluded from the diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding as they were anti-dilutive.  
 
8. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 
 
The following tables summarize information about options and performance and restricted share awards outstanding: 
 

Compensation awards      

(thousands) 
  Share 

options 
Performance 

share units 
Restricted 

share units Total 

Granted – September 8, 2021   731 185 187 1,103 
Granted – October 12, 2021   13 – 8 21 
Granted – October 15, 2021   13 – 8 21 

December 31, 2021   757 185 203 1,145 

Granted – March 24, 2022   8 138 8 154 

March 31, 2022   765 323 211 1,299 

 
During the period ended March 31, 2022, the Company granted 0.2 million share-based payment awards, comprised of share options, 
performance share units and restricted share units.  
 
The components of share-based payment expense are as follows: 
 

  Three months ended 
March 31, 2022 

Share options   $ 95 
Restricted share units    73 
Performance share units    93 

Share-based payment expense   $ 261 

 
a) Share options 
 
Rubellite’s share option plan provides a long-term incentive to any director, executive officer, employee or consultant associated with the 
Company’s long-term performance. The Board of Directors administers the share option plan and determines participants, number of share 
options and terms of vesting. The exercise price of the share options granted shall not be less than the value of the weighted average trading 
price for the Company’s common shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. Share options granted vest evenly 
over four years, commencing on the first anniversary, with expiry occurring five years after issuance.  
 



 

 

The Company used the Black Scholes pricing model to calculate the estimated fair value of the share options at the date of grant. The following 
assumptions were used to arrive at the estimate of fair value as at the date of grant: 
 

   March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Dividend yield (%) –  – 
Forfeiture rate (%) 5.0  5.0 
Expected volatility (%) 51.8  60.0 
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.26  1.12 
Contractual life (years) 5.0  5.0 
Weighted average share price at grant date $    3.61     $    2.02    
Weighted average fair value at grant date $    2.05     $    1.04    

 
b) Performance share units 
 
The Company has an equity-settled performance share units plan for the Company’s executive officers. Performance share units granted under 
the performance share units plan vest two years after the date upon which the performance units were granted. The performance units that 
vest and become redeemable for equivalent common shares are a multiple of the performance units granted, dependent upon the achievement 
of certain performance metrics over the vesting period. Vested performance units can be settled in cash or in common shares of the Company 
at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Performance units are forfeited if participants of the performance share units plan leave the 
organization other than through retirement or termination without cause prior to the vesting date.  
 
The fair value of a performance share units award is determined at the date of grant by using the closing price of common shares multiplied by 
the estimated performance multiplier. As at March 31, 2022, performance multipliers of 2.0 have been assumed for performance share units 
granted in 2021 and 1.0 for performance share units granted during the first quarter of 2022. Fluctuations in share-based payments may occur 
due to changes in estimates of performance outcomes. The amount of share-based payment expense is reduced by an estimated forfeiture rate 
of 5% for outstanding awards. The fair value of performance share rights granted during the period ended March 31, 2022 was $4.07 per 
award.  
 
c) Restricted share units  

 
The Company has a restricted share unit plan for any director, officer, employee or consultant. The restricted share units vest evenly over a 
two year period after the date upon which the restricted share units were granted. The restricted share units that vest can be settled in cash or 
in common shares of the Company.  
 
This fair value is recognized as share-based payment expense with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. The weighted average fair 
value of restricted share rights granted during the period ended March 31, 2022 was $4.07 per award.  
 
9. OIL REVENUE 
 
The Company sells its production pursuant to fixed or variable price contracts. The transaction price for variable priced contracts is based on 
the commodity price, adjusted for quality, location or other factors, whereby each component of the pricing formula can be either fixed or 
variable, depending on the contract terms. Under the contracts, the Company is required to deliver fixed or variable volumes of crude oil as 
may be applicable to the contract counterparty. Oil revenue is recognized when a unit of production is delivered to the contract counterparty. 
The amount of oil revenue recognized is based on the agreed transaction price, whereby any variability in oil revenue relates specifically to the 
Company’s efforts to transfer production, and therefore the resulting oil revenue is allocated to the production delivered in the period during 
which the variability occurs. As a result, none of the variable oil revenue is considered constrained.  
 
The Company’s properties currently produce heavy crude oil and volumes are mostly sold under floating contracts of varying price and volume 
terms of up to one year. Oil revenues are typically collected on the 25th day of the month following production. Included in accounts receivable 
at March 31, 2022 is $4.8 million of oil revenue related to March 2022 production (December 31, 2021 - $1.6 million of oil revenue related to December 
2021 production).  
 
10. BANK DEBT  
 
During the first quarter of 2022, the Company’s first lien credit facility was increased from $3.0 million to $25.0 million, with an initial term to 
May 31, 2023 and which may be extended for a further twelve months to May 31, 2024 subject to lender approval. If not extended by May 31, 
2023, all outstanding advances would be repayable on May 31, 2024. The next semi-annual borrowing base redetermination is scheduled on or 
before November 30, 2022.  
 
As at March 31, 2022, $nil was drawn against the credit facility.  
 
11. FINANCE EXPENSE 
 

   Three months ended 
March 31, 2022 

Interest expense   $ 174 
Accretion (note 6)     8 

Finance expense   $ 182 

 
 



 

 

12. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
As at March 31, 2022, the Company had the following crude oil risk management contracts, with a short-term mark-to-market liability of $11.2 
million, and a long-term mark-to-market liability of $0.7 million (December 31, 2021 – short-term mark-to-market asset of $0.1 million, short-
term mark-to-market liability of $1.3 million, long-term mark-to-market liability of $0.1 million).     
 

Remaining 
Period Type of Contract 

 
Quantity  

(bbl/d) Pricing Point 
Contract Price 

($/bbl) 

Mark-to-Market 
Asset (Liability) 

($000’s) 

Apr 2022 – Jun 2022 Fixed Swap 200 WTI CAD 95.46 (522) 

Apr 2022 – Jun 2022 Fixed Swap 300 WTI CAD 90.07 (899) 

Apr 2022 – Jun 2022 Fixed Swap 200 WTI CAD 104.61 (322) 

Apr 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Swap 300 WTI CAD 88.64 (2,331) 

Apr 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Swap 300 WTI CAD 87.45 (2,394) 

Apr 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Swap 200 WCS CAD 76.15 (1,668) 

Jul 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Swap 300 WTI CAD 87.25 (1,452) 

Jul 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Swap 200 WTI CAD 103.30 (383) 

Jan 2023 – Dec 2023 Fixed Swap 100 WTI USD 64.50 (848) 

Apr 2022 – Jun 2022 Fixed Differential Swap 200 WCS CAD (20.16) (77) 

Apr 2022 – Jun 2022 Fixed Differential Swap 300 WCS CAD (21.70) (180) 

Apr 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Differential Swap 300 WCS CAD (18.05) (236) 

Apr 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Differential Swap 300 WCS CAD (18.30) (255) 

Apr 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Differential Swap 200 WCS CAD (17.25) (118) 

Jul 2022 – Dec 2022 Fixed Differential Swap 300 WCS CAD (17.55) (127) 

Jan 2023 – Dec 2023 Fixed Differential Swap 200 WCS CAD (17.75) (105) 

 
As at March 31, 2022, if future WTI and WCS oil prices changed by CAD $5.00 per bbl with all other variables held constant, net loss for the 
period would change by $4.0 million due to changes in the fair value of risk management contracts.  
 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 
The Company’s fair value measurements are classified into one of the following levels of the fair value hierarchy: 

 
Level 1 – inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. An active market is characterized 
by a high volume of transactions that provides pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These 
valuations are based on inputs that can be observed or corroborated in the marketplace, such as market interest rates or forecasted 
commodity prices. 

 
Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability are not based on observable market data.  

 
The Company aims to maximize the use of observable inputs when preparing calculations of fair value. Classification of each measurement into 
the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value calculation. 
 
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, deposits, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their 
carrying amounts due to their short terms to maturity. They are classified as amortized cost, level 1.   
 
The fair value of risk management contracts are classified as fair value through profit and loss (“FTPL”), level 2.  
 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, excluding working capital, is attributable to the following fair value hierarchy levels: 
 

   
Carrying 
Amount 

Fair value 

As at March 31, 2022 Gross Netting(1) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 

Financial liabilities       
Fair value through profit and loss       

  Risk management contracts 11,917 – 11,917 – 11,917 – 
(1) Risk management contract assets and liabilities presented in the statement of financial position are shown net of offsetting assets or liabilities where the 

arrangement provides for the legal right and intention for net settlement exists. 
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